SOLICITATION NNK10317674E – AMENDMENT 000002

ATTACHMENT 1
ANSWERS TO SOLICITATION QUESTIONS

&

SUMMARY OF CHANGES

RECOVERY – Commercial Crew Enabling Initiatives – Upgrades to Launch Complex 40

Question 1
REFERENCE:
Statement of Work (SOW), Sheet 16 of 19
QUESTION:  Table 1 -Submittal Milestones requires the submittal of as built drawings by the statement of work further states that we will not be provided with working drawings to use in generating as built drawings.  What format does NASA wish to have the as built drawing submitted in and how much detail is anticipate since LC40 is a large complex and we will only be doing work in specific areas?  Are the drawing required to be signed and sealed? 

ANSWER:  Table 1 has been revised and is incorporated in the revised SOW as part of 

Amendment 000002.  Sketches or red lined shop drawings in PDF format are acceptable. 

The contractor is only responsible for specific areas detailed in this SOW.  Drawings are not 
Required to be signed and include a Principle Engineer seal.
Question 2

REFERENCE:  Statement of Work, Attachment G
QUESTION: Item f refers to a drawing attached. There is no drawing in our package. Please provide.
ANSWER:  Refer to Attachment G, sheet 3, sketch entitled “AGE Lighting”.  For convenience, a copy of Attachment G has been attached to amendment 000002.  Note:  No changes have been made to Attachment G.
Question 3

REFERENCE: Statement of Work, Attachment B
QUESTION:  Please provide the quantity of oil filled transformers to be drained.
ANSWER:  The lower AGE substation has two 2500KVA Square D transformers with capacity of 533 gallons per transformer.  Note that only a sample needs to be drained.  Refer to the revised SOW, Attachment B, Oil Filled Transformers, Electrical Test, 5, A-I, for details.  
Question 4

REFERENCE: Statement of Work, Attachment E
QUESTION:  In attachment E we are required to replace a 25 ton AC unit. Supplier does not recall this scope of work being discussed at the pre-bid. Is it a contract requirement?
ANSWER:  Yes.  Refer to Attachment E for specific requirements.
Question 5

REFERENCE: Part 1.1.2.1 ENGINEERING SERVICES

QUESTION:  “The design services shall include the preparation of the construction documents that, once approved by the Government, shall govern the construction of, and be the controlling documents for, the project described in this SOW.” However, Part 3. DESIGN PRODUCTS lists only items such as catalog cuts.  Does the A&E scope include preparation of construction plans and specifications?
ANSWER:  No.  Drawings and specs are not required from the A&E. Most of the tasks are repair, replace and restore to the original configuration. If it cannot be done without a change to the original configuration, and require an alternate method, then an engineering change order shall be submit for approval.  

Question 6
REFERENCE:  Part 1.1.2.1 ENGINEERING SERVICES

QUESTION:  Some of the tasks do not appear to require engineering (e.g.3.c. Install Bollards). For which tasks does the government expect to receive plans and specs?

ANSWER: Most of the tasks are repair, replace and restore to the original configuration. If it cannot be done without a change to the original configuration, and require an alternate method, then an engineering change order shall be submit for approval.  

Question 7

REFERENCE:  Part 1.1.2.1 ENGINEERING SERVICES
QUESTION:  What is the process and schedule for Government review and approval of design 
products/construction documents prior to construction start.
ANSWER:  The submittal schedule requirements are identified in section J.A.1 thru J.A.12.  Also refer to SOW part 3.1.1.1 for specific submittal requirements. NASA will review construction shop submittals within 5 working days of submission.
Question 8

REFERENCE: Statement of Work, Attachment B
QUESTION:  Please note that on the Scope of Work Attachment B, under General paragraph b. the comment "Testing personnel shall be NETA certified and Square D authorized service representatives". We cannot meet the requirement as we have not been certified by Square D as a representative. In the same respect, Square D cannot be a NETA company as the laws of NETA do not allow manufacturers to participate. Please clarify the requirement.  
ANSWER: Testing personnel shall be Square D certified.   See revised Attachment B.
Question 9

REFERENCE:  Statement of Work Sheet 5 of 18 
QUESTION:  Statement of work states “Install new gate openers for east and west side gates”.  Is this statement referring to electric gate openers?  

ANSWER:  Yes.  The contractor is required to install electric gate openers for the east and west side gates.  The SOW has been updated to include this clarification.  
Question 10
REFERENCE:  Statement of Work, Attachment F 
QUESTION:  The electrical panels are called out as GE.  Do the panels have to be GE or can they be an equal?

ANSWER:  Most of the tasks are repair, replace and restore to the original configuration and shall be GE.  Launch complex 40 has been standardized and all panels must be GE.  In addition, Statement of Work, Attachment F has been revised to change from GE THQL to GE THQB.  See attached revised SOW Attachment F.
Question 11
REFERENCE:  Statement of Work, Attachment B, Auto Throw-Over PLC
QUESTION:  More information is required to provide cost for testing. Need to know the manufacturer of PLC processor as well as model number.

ANSWER:  The current PLC is a Square D SY/MAX model 50 programmable controller with 24 inputs and 16 outputs.  See attached revised SOW Attachment B.

Question 12
REFERENCE: Statement of Work, Attachment D, Lightning Mitigation System, Item #4, Paragraph “A” thru “E”.

QUESTION: After repairs to electrical connections, if the connections still do not read 1 OHM or lower, what procedure is to be followed?

ANSWER: If after repairs to electrical connections, the connections still do not read 1 OHM or lower, the contractor shall submit a Change Order including test reports to the Government for further disposition.  No revision has been made to Attachment D in response to this question.
Question 13
REFERENCE: Statement of Work, Attachment D, Lightning Mitigation System, Item # 5, Paragraph “B”; states: If required replace corroded damaged steel member and associated fastener.

QUESTION: In order for contractors to bid this we need to know exactly how much steel will need to be replaced, we would need to do a tower inspection prior to bid, or maybe you can quantify steel replacement for all contractors? 
ANSWER:  For bidding purposes, assume 50% replacement of the steel member that is directly around the top and bottom SST stiffener collard rings at the base of the candle stick.   

Question 14
REFERENCE: Statement of Work, Attachment “E” FSB HVAC

QUESTION: The 25 ton unit has no specifications, please provide information on unit such as: single wall construction or double wall, coated condenser coil, efficiency, etc. ? 
ANSWER:  The FSB HVAC unit has double wall construction, coated condenser coil, dual compressor for staging, high efficiency unit (minimum R‐22, 13 seers).  See attached revised SOW Attachment E.
Question 15
REFERENCE: Statement of Work, Base Task, Item “D” 

QUESTION: Please clarify if we are to provide new door frame and doors for the mechanical room.  Are we to reuse existing hardware?
ANSWER:  No.  Per the Statement of Work, Base Task, Item d, i. and ii, the contractor shall “Remove and replace the double doors for the mechanical room located on the North side of the FSB with new matching door and frame”.  No revision has been made to the SOW in response to this question.
Question 16
REFERENCE: Statement of Work, Option 4, Item “F”

QUESTION: At the pre bid it appeared that the two slope areas on the west side of the pad already had established grassing, could you please clarify where and quantify the sod required?
ANSWER:  SOW, Option 4 (e)(i) has been revised to remove the requirement for Bahia sod grass and metal staples.  All other requirements of this section remain unchanged.  See attached revised SOW.

Question 17
REFERENCE: Statement of Work, Pg. 10 of 18, Paragraph 1.4.1 Record of Environmental Consideration (REC)

QUESTION: I did not receive a copy of the REC, is one available? 
ANSWER:  The Record of Environmental Consideration (REC) has been added to the SOW as Attachment 3.  See attached revised SOW Attachment 3.

Question 18
REFERENCE: Statement of Work, Pg 10 of 18, Paragraph 2.1.1.1 Environmental Sustainability, Section A. Hazardous Materials Reports, Paragraph “I” Asbestos.

QUESTION: Please quantify the asbestos tests required, should we include this testing in our proposal cost?  If asbestos hazards are confirmed and the A&E is responsible for adding demolition notes to the drawings, is the contractor going to be given a change order to accomplish the work?  If not, how do we quantify for our proposal? 
ANSWER:  No.  Other than the areas indicated in the report, NASA does not anticipate required tasks to be involved with asbestos, The SOW has been updated to include Attachment K, Asbestos Survey Report and Attachment L, AMIS Report Facility.  In addition, refer to Attachment C for specific details on asbestos.  See attached revised SOW Attachments K and L.

Question 19
QUESTION: Has a hazardous coatings test been performed on the lightning protection towers?  If so may we have test report? 
ANSWER:  The lightning protection towers were built in the 1994 time frame, and therefore, no sampling is need. However, construction health and safety requirements shall be applied for blasting, cutting, and welding on painted structures throughout Launch Complex 40.  
Question 20
REFERENCE:  Statement of Work, Attachment E, FSB HVAC 

QUESTION: What is the existing equipment model and serial number?

ANSWER:  The existing equipment is a Trane, Model # RAUCC254CT0300D00H000, Serial # C99K21592M.  See attached revised SOW Attachment E.

.
Question 21

REFERENCE:  Statement of Work, Attachment E, FSB HVAC
QUESTION: What is the existing control system?
ANSWER:  The existing system is a Carrier Control System, 7 zones, variable air volume (VAV) boxes.  See attached revised SOW Attachment E.

SUMMARY OF CHANGES
Amendment 000002 provides additional revisions/clarifications as follows:  (All changes listed are indicated by change bars)
Contract Changes
I.17 (a) Utilities:

120/240 volt is available inside the perimeter fence only.  
480 volt electrical service is available outside the perimeter fence.
I.17 (a) Facilities:
Changed from Yes to No
Statement of work changes (All changes listed are indicated by change bars)
1. Title page, date revised from October 7, 2009 to November 13, 2009.

2. 1.1.2.1: Changed the Title to read “Engineering and Construction Management Services” and added language to Paragraphs A & B to define the roles and responsibilities of the Construction firm, A&E and CM&E.  

3. 1.2.1 Project Description:  Revised project description language. 

4. 1.2.2.1: Deleted the words “scope of this”.
5. 1.2.2.1(A)(c):   deleted “Upper AGE North Side. (6) Bollards” requirement.    

6. 1.2.2.1 (A)(e)(ii, iii):  added/deleted language).
7. 1.2.2.1 (D)(b)(i)(2):  Added clarification of 280V 3 phase.
8. 1.2.2.1 (E), entitled Option 4: Minor facility corrosion control and general upgrade (CLIN 5), deleted the requirement entitled Perform corrosion control on rail cars.  Changed paragraph alphabetical sequencing.
9. 1.2.2.1 (E)(e)(i):  deleted the requirement for Bahia sod grass and metal staples.  Changed paragraph alphabetical sequencing.
10. 2.1.1.1 (A), Hazardous Materials Reports:  removed all references given to LDE and replaced with COTR. 

11. 3.1.2:  Changed the title to read “Documentation Requirements”, added/deleted language to revise the scope.   Renumbered paragraphs 3.2 to 3.1.2., and revised scope and numbering sequence for paragraphs 3.2.1.1 to 3.1.2.1. 

12. 5.2 Government Publications:  deleted DE P520, GP4.35-Volume II, KNPR 8830.1, KSC DE 512 SM, KSC DF 107-D, KSC SPEC G 0002, NPD 8820.2, NPR 8820.2, and NPR 8831.2.
13. Attachments:  Added Attachment 2 – Extended Title II Clauses, Attachment 4 – SpaceX Non-Disclosure Statement, Attachment K – Asbestos Survey Report, Attachment L, AMIS Material Details.  The original Attachment 2 has become Attachment 3 – Record of Environmental Consideration (REC).
14. Table I –Design Build Review Submittal Schedule Milestone:  added and deleted language.
15. Attachment 1 – Extended Title I Clauses, 1.1, 2.1, and 2.3.1.2:  added and deleted language as indicated by change bars.  
16. Attachment 1, 2.4.1:   deleted requests upon disposition.
17. Attachment 1, 2.4.1.1.1:  deleted design drawings and specifications and added contract.

18. Attachment 1, 2.4.1.1.2:  added Deviation/Waivers (D/Ws) and language.

19. Attachment 1, 2.4.1.2:  added “and submittals” and deleted “as well as already those submitted for review”.
Statement of Work, Attachments

The following attachments have been revised and are incorporated as part of amendment 000005:  Attachments A, B, E, and F

The following attachments have been added to the SOW and are incorporated as part of amendment 000002:  Attachments 2, 4, K, and L
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